Bessemer City
NORTH CAROLINA ® w(,ﬁ,w/fz/,; %][/é

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
City Council Chambers
Monday, July 14, 2025 at 7:00 PM

AGENDA

Call to Order, Prayer, Pledge of Allegiance

Adjustment and Approval of the Agenda — Items will only be added or removed with the approval of
the Mayor and City Council.

Special Presentations

1. Citizen Recognition: Mayor & City Council will recognize Dr. Matt Mitchell, Pastor of First
Wesleyan Church.

Request to Speak/Opportunity for Public Comment — This is an opportunity for members of the
public to express items of interest to the Mayor and City Council. This is not a time to respond or take
action. Any necessary action will be taken under advisement. Speakers are asked to use proper decorum
and to limit comments to no more than three minutes.

2. Public Comment Acknowledgment: City Manager, Josh Ross will provide clarity on items
mentioned during public comment, if needed.

Consent Agenda — The items of the Consent Agenda are adopted on a single motion and vote, unless the
Mayor and City Council wish to withdraw an item for separate vote and/or discussion.

3. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Meeting minutes of the June 9,
2025 Regular Session.

4. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting Meeting minutes of the June 24,
2025 Work Session.

Business Items

5. Brand Presentation: Chelsea Dickey, of Motley Inc. will present Council with a new City
brand.

6. Brand Adoption: Council will consider adopting the new City brand presented by City Staff and
Motley Inc.

7. Public Hearing- Economic Development Grant (Project Arrival): City Council will hold a
public hearing to hear public comment regarding an Economic Development Incentive Level 4
for Project Arrival.



8. Resolution - Economic Development Grant (Project Arrival): City Council will consider
approving an Economic Incentive for Project Arrival after hearing those present at the public
hearing.

9. Public Hearing- Petition for VVoluntary Annexation (Sunset Ridge): City Council will hold a

public hearing to hear public comment regarding a voluntary annexation petition from
Development Solutions Group (Sunset Ridge) for property located at tax parcels #314878 and
#151640 (33.109 acres).

10. Ordinance to Extend the corporate limits of the City of Bessemer City, NC: City Council
will consider approving an ordinance regarding a zoning map amendment for property located at
tax parcels #314878 and #151640 (33.109 acres).

11. Resolution - Approving the Sale of Beer & Wine: City Council will consider adopting a
resolution that would permit the sale of Beer and Wine at the July 2025 Cinema in Centennial
Park event.

12. Resolution Opposing SB 205: City Council will consider approving a resolution oppsoing the
adoption of a bill that imposes severe restrictions on local zoning authority and grants excessive
deference to state-level mandates and private development interests.

13. Ripple Fiber Agreement - City Council will consider approving an agreement with Ripple for
purposes of operating the network to locate, place, attach, install, operate, control, maintain, and
repair Equipment in the Public Right-of-Way.

14. Award Bid - Natural Gas System Improvements (Stewart Crossing - Phase 1): City Council
will consider awarding the natural gas improvements for Phase 1 of Stewart Crossing to Classic
City Mechanical for $266,862.

City Manager's Report

Council General Discussion — This is an opportunity for the Mayor and City Council to ask questions
for clarification, provide information to staff, request staff to report back, or place a matter on a future
agenda.

Adjourn



Bessemer City
NORTH CAROLINA s (% é,(,,/{,, %J,/‘

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
City Council Chambers
Monday, June 9, 2025 at 7:00 PM

MINUTES

Members Present

Mayor Becky S. Smith; Council Members Brenda Boyd, Bill Whitmire, Brent Guffey, Nellie Floyd, Donnie
Griffin, and Allen Hook were present. City Manager Josh Ross and City Attorney Marshall Walker were
also present. A quorum was established.

Call to Order, Prayer, Pledge of Allegiance
Mayor Smith called the meeting to order. Tripp Hord, Pastor of First United Methodist led the audience in

prayer. Mayor Smith led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance and recognized June 14™ as the 250"
anniversary of the United States military.

Adjustment and Approval of the Agenda
By motion of Allen Hook and unanimous vote, the June agenda was approved with no revisions.

Request to Speak/Opportunity for Public Comment
Mayor Smith opened the floor for public comment. There was none.

Consent Agenda
The following items on the Consent Agenda were unanimously approved by motion of Donnie Griffin:

1. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Meeting minutes of the May 12,
2025 Regular Session.

2. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting Meeting minutes of the May 27,
2025 Work Session.

Ordinance - Proposed FY 2025-2026 Budget
By motion of Brenda Boyd and a 5:1 vote, with Donnie Griffin in opposition, the 2025-2026 proposed
budget was adopted. A copy of the budget ordinance is on file at City Hall.

Resolution Directing the Clerk to Investigate a Petition Received for Voluntary Annexation
N.C.G.S. 8160A-31 (Meritage Homes)

By motion of Donnie Griffin and unanimous vote, a resolution directing the City Clerk to investigate the
petition for voluntary annexation from Development Solutions Group for the Sunset Ridge homes project
per NCGS 160A — 31 was adopted.

Establish a Public Hearing - Petition for Voluntary Annexation (Sunset Ridge):
By motion of Nellie Floyd and unanimous vote, City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, July
14th, 2025, at 7:00 PM to hear public comment regarding a voluntary annexation petition from



Development Solutions Group (Sunset Ridge) for property located at tax parcels #314878 and #151640
(36.08 acres).

Lead and Copper - Engineering Contract (Find & Replace)

City Manager Josh Ross explained that this contract and the next item on the agenda are for the same lead
and copper study. These contracts continue the work initiated with funding from the NC Department of
Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) regarding lead and galvanized piping in Bessemer City infrastructure.
The project aligns with Phase 1 of the city’s broader compliance and improvement plan under EPA
guidelines. The associated loan is 100% forgivable. A grant presentation will be delivered at the June 2025
work session.

By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, the engineering contract for 400 replacement services with
Harvin Engineering LLC was approved.

Lead and Copper - Engineering Contract (Service Replacement)
By motion of Nellie Floyd and unanimous vote, the engineering contract for 150 replacement services with
Harvin Engineering LLC was approved.

Advisory Board Appointments Discussion
City Clerk, Hydeia Hayes addressed Mayor and City Council regarding all applications received by citizens
to serve on an advisory board. City Council made the following appointments:

By motion of Brenda Boyd and unanimous vote, Constantine Tsambourinery and Charlene Hill were
reappointed to serve on the Planning & Zoning Board of Adjustments. They will serve as Board Members
until June 30, 2028.

By motion of Allen Hook and unanimous vote, Paul “Demond” Richardson was appointed to serve on the
Downtown Development Board. He will serve until 2028.

By motion of Allen Hook and unanimous vote, Andrew Baxter was appointed to serve on the Parks &
Recreation Advisory Board. He will serve until 2028.

By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, Terry Holt, Michael Brooks, and Joe Will were reappointed
to serve until June 30, 2028.

Offer to Sell Property
City Manager, Josh Ross informed the board that the upset bid process for property at 110 West Virginia
Avenue has concluded. At this time, no bids have been received for this property.

By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, an offer to purchase property at 110 West Virginia
Avenue Parcel ID# 120803 for $200,000.00 was permitted. City Council also permitted the City Manager
to consummate the sale.

ABC Board Chairman
By general consensus of City Council, Council member, Bill Whitmire was appointed to serve as the
ABC Board liaison.

By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, John Matsik was appointed to serve on the ABC Board
Chair until June 30, 2026.



Planning & Zoning Board Chairman and Vice Chairman
By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, David Bruce Absher was reappointed to serve as Board
Chair and Charlene Hill to serve as Vice Chair until June 30, 2026.

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board Chairman
By motion of Allen Hook and unanimous vote, Andrew Baxter was appointed to serve as the Parks &
Recreation Advisory Board Chair until June 30, 2026.

City Manager’s Report
City Manager Ross gave updates on several projects:
e Project GT: The long-paused project is now resuming, with expected progress this year.
o Land Development Code (LDC): A consultant who previously worked on the LDC will assist with
revisions.
« City Hall Annex: Still on the market, with no bids received. However, it has received several
inquiries.
o Parks & Recreation: The city pool is open, and Parks & Recreation is planning a movie night at
Centennial Park.
« Downtown Development Board: Recently held its first official meeting, with a diverse mix of
participants.
o Events: The Juneteenth Festival is upcoming. Staff are also preparing for the “ALIVE” concert and
fireworks on Friday, June 27th. Ross thanked the City Council and staff for their work on the budget
and other ongoing projects, noting the complexity and high expectations involved.

Council General Discussion

Mayor Smith opened the floor for Council general discussion. Council Member Whitmire thanked City
Manager Ross for his time and work on the budget process. Council Member Floyd commended the staff’s
quick response to a cleanup request and discussed signage for the cemetery. Council Member Allen Hook
acknowledged the staff’s efforts on the budget. Council Member Boyd thanked Allen and Brent for their
housing work and noted concerns about homelessness in the community. Council Member Brent Guffey
praised staff and suggested a 3% pay raise, noting resident complaints about speeding near Costner School
Road. Council Member Griffin expressed appreciation for Hydeia Hayes and all staff contributions. Mayor
Smith concluded by praising the staff’s commitment and hard work, emphasizing the city’s cleanliness and
cooperative efforts with inmate labor. She reiterated support for a potential staff raise by January.

Adjournment
Being no further business to come before the board, by motion of Brenda Boyd and unanimous vote, the
meeting was adjourned at 7:35 PM.

Becky S. Smith, Mayor Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk



]
Bessemer City
NORTH CAROLINA mim (}5“}%% : p,,,/j
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION

City Council Chambers
Tuesday, June 24, 2025 at 2:00 PM

MINUTES

Call to Order
Mayor Becky S. Smith called the meeting to order.

Members Present

Present for the meeting were Council Members Brenda Boyd, Nellie Floyd, Bill Whitmire, Brent Guffey,
Allen Hook, and Donnie Griffin. City Manager Josh Ross and department heads were also in attendance. A
quorum was established.

Department Reports

JoD Franklin, Parks & Recreation Director

Mr. Franklin announced plans to rent the City park for a community gospel singing event on August 7. The
event will include two bands, with proceeds benefiting Western Relief Funds. He shared that concessions
and possibly a food truck will be provided, and the splash pad will remain open. He discussed plans for trivia
nights at local businesses, movie nights in the park for youth and young adults, and a potential craft beer
vendor for certain events. The Council was advised that community feedback and partnership consistency
would be key in determining the venues for future activities. He also previewed changes to the Brew & Que
festival, including earlier judging and expanded engagement with vendors and media. By consensus, Brew
& Que will be held on Friday, October 3", 2025.

Jamie Watkins, City Planner & Stormwater Administrator

Mrs. Watkins updated Council on sidewalk installations in Stewart Crossing and addressed drainage
concerns on 8th Street, clarifying it is a state-maintained road. Dust mitigation efforts are underway in
Meritage Homes and Stewart Crossing. She also discussed new public outreach materials related to
stormwater education and noted a voluntary annexation at Brookline to be heard in the next regular meeting.
Additional updates included LDC revisions and project reviews for Stratford Homes and Sunset Ridge.

Diane Jenkins, Finance Director

Ms. Jenkins reported that the City is finalizing year-end items in preparation for the annual audit. She noted
there were fewer budget amendments this year than in any year since 2014 and praised staff for staying the
course.

Jamie Ramsey, Operations and Special Projects Director

Mr. Ramsey reported a successful gas audit and noted that Dylan Farris in the gas department recently earned
his welding certification, which will allow the City to reduce external welding costs. He also reported on a
pending gas line relocation in the Vantine area and the receipt of two lead and copper study engineering
contracts that will be presented to Council in June.

Tom Ellis, Public Safety Director




Mr. Ellis reported a sharp increase in fire-related calls and recent instances of youth vandalism on city
property. Two speed monitoring devices are in use to address public safety concerns.

Hydeia Hayes, City Clerk & Human Resources Director
Ms. Hayes noted that all City boards are currently filled and share appreciation for the Council's support of
Juneteenth and staff events.

Capital Project and Grant Presentations
Doug Chaman, McGill Engineering Associates and City Manager, Josh Ross presented updates on
stormwater and water quality grants:

e PFAs Study: A state-funded $500,000 grant has been awarded to assess and pilot treatment
solutions for PFAs—chemical contaminants linked to health risks.

o Stormwater Management: A $340,000 grant is dedicated to watershed study and infrastructure
planning.

e Lead & Copper Rule Compliance: Harvin Engineering is assisting with inventory and replacement
projects totaling over $4 million. These are federally mandated and partially forgivable through
grants. Notices to affected property owners will be sent out next month.

o Brownfield Assessments: 20 Phase | and 10 Phase Il environmental assessments are underway
following delays earlier in the year.

« Public Safety Station: Staff is seeking $2.15 million in direct state grant funding to construct a new
Public Safety facility. Sales of surplus City properties (totaling $3.5 million) and general funds will
help finance the project. A purchase at 115 W. Washington Avenue is pending Council approval,
and environmental feasibility studies have been completed.

Budget Amendments
Finance Director Jenkins discussed internal budget balancing without tapping into fund balance. A new
GASB rule now requires reporting of sales tax refunds and accounting for sick and vacation leave liabilities.
City staff is seeking approval of one budget amendment regarding general fund and another regarding the
water and sewer fund.

By motion of Allen Hook and unanimous vote, the budget amendment for general fund in the amount of
$106,000 was approved.

By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, the budget amendment for the water and sewer fund in the
amount of $78,000 was approved.

Hazard Mitigation Plan
Gaston County Emergency Management staff are working on the required five-year update to the Hazard
Mitigation Plan.

By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, the hazard mitigation plan update was adopted.

Establish Public Hearing — Economic Development Grant (Project Arrival)
By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, a public hearing regarding a Level 4 Economic
Development Incentive for Project Arrival on Monday, July 14, 2025 at 7:00 PM.

City Manager’s Report




City Manager Ross highlighted the feasibility study and environmental review for the Public Safety capital
project. He noted upcoming events, strategic outreach to media outlets such as Queen City News, and
continued coordination for community development projects.

Council General Discussion

Mayor Smith opened the floor for discussion. Council Member, Brenda Boyd shared a compliment from
Trinity Baptist regarding City staff professionalism. Council Member, Brent Guffey reported brush cleanup
issues being addressed by City crews. Council Member, Allen Hook provided an update on debris removal
efforts at the Dallas Citizens Center, which will conclude by the end of June.

Adjournment
There being no further business, by motion of Brenda Boyd and unanimous vote the meeting was

adjourned at 4:18 PM.

Becky S. Smith, Mayor Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk



Bessemer City
NORTH CAROLINA =) %W@/ 7 D

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A LEVEL FOUR INCENTIVE GRANT PURSUANT TO
N.C.GEN.STAT. §158-7.1 AND TO AUTHORIZE GASTON COUNTY TO ENTER INTO AN
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (EDA) WITH PROJECT ARRIVAL

WHEREAS, Project ARRIVAL is considering a total investment of $56,000,000 to establish a manufacturing
facility in Gaston County. Project ARRIVAL plans to invest $56 million to customize and upfit an existing facility
and purchase machinery and equipment. Project ARRIVAL anticipates creating 175 new jobs with an average
annual salary exceeding $52,354 per year in Gaston County which is above the county average wage; and,

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §158-7.1 authorizes a City to undertake an economic development
project by providing grants for the location of industry; should any grants and incentives be offered by the State
of North Carolina and a local match be required, the Local Investment Grant will be used as the match and no
additional funds will be obligated by the City; and,

WHEREAS, Bessemer City developed an economic grant policy to provide global advanced manufacturing
companies and distribution facilities with incentives to attract high quality industries and jobs; and,

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the Company’s capital investment in and at the Property and its operations
thereat will generate significant ad valorem tax, sales tax and other revenues to the City and will qualify for a
Level Four Grant; and,

WHEREAS, the City will prepare a detailed Economic Development Agreement (EDA), between Project
ARRIVAL and the City, and chosen municipality, to induce the company to provide good job opportunities and
capital investment which will enhance the City’s ability to attract additional business and industry; and,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Bessemer City Council approves a Level Four Grant
and authorizes City Manager to execute any documents necessary to complete an Economic Development
Agreement for Foundry Commercial.

Adopted this the 14" day of July, 2025.

Becky S. Smith, Mayor

Hydeia Hayes, City Clerk

COBC-GOVBOD-2025-2026 R 2









Written metes and bounds description of property to be annexed
Attach additional sheets if necessary. Petitioners must submit an electronic Microsoft Word version. Petitioners must email

an electronic copy to



Section D Annexation Petition

State of North Carolina, Gaston County, Petition of Annexation of Property to the City of Bessemer City, North Carolina

Part 1 The undersigned, being all the owners of the real property described in this application (Section C) respectfully request the
annexation of said property to the City of Bessemer City, North Carolina. tioners understand and agree that any utilities
that must be extended to the annexed area are the responsibility of lopers or successive property owners. The
property to be annexed is:

X Contiguous to the present primary corporate limits of the City of Bessemer City, North Carolina, or
e (Not Contiguous) to the municipal limits of the City City, and meets all of the requirements for NCGS
58.1(b). This includes that if any portion of an area of annexation is part of a subdivision, all of the

subdivision must be included

Part 2 NC General Statutes require petitioners of both contiguous and satellite annexations to file a signed statement declaring
whether vested rights have been established in accordance with G S 60A-385 or 53A-344. for properties subject to the petition

Do you declare such vested rights for the property subject to this petition? Yes No X

If yes, please submit proof that vested rights have been granted by governing board. | hereby declare that my failure to disclose
existence of a vested right terminates any vested right previously acquired for this property.

Signed this2'$' __ day March 2025 by the owners of the property described in Section C.

Owner’s Signature(s)
Include signatures of new owners if ownership will change during the annexation process.

Indicate if owner is signing on behalf of legal in what capacity.

Print Tommy and Ann Millwood Phone
14 Mountain Laurel Ln, Dallas,
Sign

Print Jr and Suzanne Kiser Phone
Chapel Road, Bessemer Cily, NC 28016

Signature Nata

Prnt
Add 0
5~9-2735

Print Phone

Signatu

Print Name Phone

Address

S

Print N Phone

Add
S

Print Phone

A notary statement must be completely filled out for each signature.



PETITION MUST BE NOTARIZED

State of:
County of:

Use this section for individual landowners.

y a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby certify that the

land of Landowner], as stated on the annexation petition, personally
appeared th day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument.
Use this section for all land owners that are not individuals, such as limitation) corporate land

owners, properties held in an estate, properties held in trust, etc.

Name], a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby

certify Representative for Landowner], a duly authorized representative
for mentioned on the annexation petition as the landowner,
personaily came before me this da and acknowledged that he is [Title] of

said land owner, and acknowledged on behalf of said landowner, the due execution of the foregoing
instrument.

Use this section for all individual landowners that are having a Power-of-Attorney execute the
Annexation Request.

ry’s Name), a Notary Public for Said County and State, do hereby certify

that, ttorney-In-Fact’s Namel, Attorney-in-Fact for

, [Name of Landowner(s)] personally appeared before me this day, and

being by me duly sworn, say that he/she executed the foregoing and annexed instrument for and on behalf of

said Landowner(s) and that his/her authority to execute and acknowledge said instrument is contained in an

instrument duly executed, acknowledged and recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds in the County of

State of [County & State of Recording Office] on the __ day of

, 20, [Date of Recording of the Document] and that this instrument was executed under and by virtue

of the authority given by said instrument granting him power of attorney. | further certify that the said Attorney-
In-Fact acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposed therein

expressed for and on behalf of said Landowners.

Witness my hand and official seal th 205

My commission expires - QL\' &1 ;

[SEAL

(13

Hin



Type: CONSOLIDATED REAL PROPERTY
Recorded: 4/1/2025 11:05:21 AM

Fee Amt: $926.00 Page 1 of 5

Revenue Tax: $900.00

Gaston County, NC Register Of Deeds
Jonathan L. Fletcher, Registrar

BK 5547 PG 1109 - 1113

NORTH GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

As to County only property: p/o Tax Parcel 151644 PIN: 3517- 61- 9550 BMP: 11 013 002 00 000
As to Bessemer City property: plo Tax Parcel: 151645 PIN: 3517-71-4367 BMP: 11 013 00201000

Excise Tax = $900.00

Notice per NCGS §105-317.2: The b p is—[ X 1] residence of the Grantor
Prepared by & Mail to: R. Steven h PO Box , NC 28130-0809
Title Insurance with Investors Title 202510513GA

index Description: Metes & Bounds

This Deed 3 of and
GRANTOR GRANTEE
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr Development Solutions Group, LLC
& spouse, a North Carolina limited liability company,
Suzanne P. Kiser having Secretary of State ID# 1258264
1411 Puetts Chapel Road 6401 Carmel Road, Ste. 101
Bessemer City, NC 28016-9582 Charlotte, NC 28226-8364
The and as used herein shall said parties,

successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as
required by context.

he
| of

Bessemer City, in Gaston County, North Carolina and more particularly described as
follows:

See attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by reference.

Registry.

See Restrictive Covenants in Attached Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

submitted electronically "R ven sSmith orn
in compliance with North ol statutes g rni recordabie documents
and the terms of the subm er eement wit  he ton county Register of Deeds



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and
appurtenances thereto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.

the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever except for the exceptions hereinafter stated.

Title tothe p i desc is fo the following exce
3) All su able cti easements as may r of
record;

4) The lien of ad valorem taxes for the current year;

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set his hand and seal, the day and year first above
written.

(SEAL) (SEAL)
Kiser, Kiser
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )
)
COUNTY OF GASTON )
I, a Notary Public of the County of and State aforesaid, certify that

Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. & spouse, Suzanne  Kiser
personally came before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing
instrument. Witness my hand official stamp or seal, this March 31, 2025.

Public for C

AR ..
¥ Commission s:

PUB\_\C



Exhibit A
{ egal Description

Township property din the
ston Coun icularly d ed as

e X}

branch, nine lines as follows:

distances:



rs Mountain Township, with a portion said property being in the Town

BL Companies.



EXHIBIT "B"
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS TO PROPERTY

de in this Wa isco
nd nts, which hthe

laws or regulations of any state, county, municipality
provisions shall apply and control.

No more than 3 houses per acre for development.

single-family dwelling on the Property must be site-built and

constructed from new or unused building materials.
- No less than 50% of the exterior front-fagade of all dwellings must be

constructed of materials utilizing non-lap siding.
. Driveways for dwellings shall be concrete.

. Single-family dwellings must have a minimum of 1,400 square
feet of heated living area, excluding any square foctage of garages, porches, storage areas, or other
non-heated and unfinished areas to the dwelling.

. Single-family dwellings shall have roofs of no less than a 6-foot pitch and 12-
foot rise and be covered in architectural shingles.

. Each dwelling shall have an attached and fully enclosed one or two car garage.

, One accessory building shall be allowed for each lot on the Property and shall be
located within 35 feet of such lot's rear property line but no closer than 10 feet to the side property lines
of the lot. Under no circumstances shall any accessory building be used for business or commercial
uses or be used in such a way which would create or constitute an annoyance or nuisance for
surrounding property owners.

. Basketball goals if otherwise allowed shall be placed in any event at the
rear of the structure (or in the backyard) but not within a street or right-of-way.
Fences as allowed shall not be constructed (or of a style resembling) chain-link.

. Matorcycles, mini-bikes,
mopeds, all-terrain vehicles, go-carts, and similar modes of transportation shall not be aperated on any
developed or undeveloped lot or any street within the Property unless the same are licensed and are
used solely for the purpose of providing the operators thereof with a means of transportation to and from
the operator's residence.

10. Signage. No sign of any type shall be displayed or placed on any building lot except “for rent” or “for

1.

sale” signs, and shall nonetheless not exceed three (3) square feet in size to the face of the sign or be
placed at a height exceeding three (3) feet above the surface of the ground. Nothing contained herein
shall prevent any builder, contractor, lender, or real estate brokerage firm from placing a sign on a lot
while a dwelling is being constructed thereon, provided that such signage shall be removed from the {ot
prior to the time the dwelling is occupied.

. Exotic pets and other animals, birds, or reptiles, including but not limited to livestock,
poultry, pot-bellied pigs, and swine, are not permitted and shall not be raised or kept on any lot. This
restriction shall not apply to dogs, cats, or other common househokd pets, provided that such pet is not
bred, kept, or maintained for commercial purposes, and provided that their existence is in no way
noxious, dangerous, unpleasant, or of a nature that might diminish the enjoyment and use of other
residents and owners in proximity to the ot on which the pet is located.

Dogs must be kept on a leash while being walked or otherwise fenced within the owner’s lot.



co ATED REAL PROPERTY
ded: 5 11:06:12 AM
Fee Amt: $26.00 Page 10of5

Revenue Tax: $0.00
Gaston County, NC Register Of Deeds

Jonathan L. Fletcher, Registrar

BK 5547 PG 1114 - 1118

NORTH CAROLINA NON-WARRANTY DEED

Asto ly x Pa IN: 3617- MP: 11013 0 00
Asto C Tax 5PIN: 35 BMP: 11 013 000
1 resid rantor
X ,NC
Index Description: Metes & Bounds
This this 31 2025
GRANTOR GRANTEE
Meivin Luther Kiser, Jr. Development Solutions Group, LLC
& spouse, a North Carolina limited liability company,
having Secretary of State ID# 1258264

Suzanne P. Kiser

6401 Carmel Road, Ste. 101

Bessemer City, NC 28016-9582 Charlotte, NC 28226-8364
Grantor as shall said parties, heirs,

The
successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as

required by context.

1411 Puetts Chapel Road

follows:
See attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by reference.

Registry.
See Restrictive Covenants in Attached Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by

reference.

submitted ele TK "R Steven Smith Attorney"
in compliance t olina statutes governing recordable documents
and the terms ubm er agreement with the caston cCounty Register of Deeds



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and
appurtenances thereto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.

Grantor, makes no warranty, expressed or implied, as o title to the property hereinabove
described.

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set his hand and seal, the day and year first above
written.

(SEAL)
Luther Jr P. Kiser

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )

)
COUNTY OF GASTON )
1, a Notary Public of the County of and State aforesaid, certify that
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. & spouse, Suzanne P. Kiser
personally came before acknowledged the execution of the foregoing
instrument. Witness my or seal, this March 31, 2025.

o202



Exhibit A
Legal Description

Located in Crowders Mountain Township, with a portion said property being in the Town
of Bessemer City, in Gaston County and

East
ne of | to
r, Jr. in

southeasterly conterminous line of the said Reginia A. Silvers property (owned now or



ly)

51° 34’ 56” East 197.97 feet to the and pla INNING
s, [with Mountai =
City = 3.173
nonm 17,

Being most of Tract One of the property that Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. et uxor conveyed
to Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser as Tenants by the Entireties by
deed filed October 14, 2022 in Book 5371 page 1347.

Being portion of: Tax Parcel: 151644 PIN: 3517-61-9550 BMP: 11 013 002 00 000
Being portion of: Tax Parcel: 151645 PIN: 3517-71-4367 BMP: 11 013 002 01 000



EXHIBIT "B
' RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS TO PROPERTY

in
nts
ny

provisions shall apply and control.

10.

n.

o more than 3 houses per acre for development.

single-family dwelling on the Property must be site-built and
constructed from new or unused building materials.
. No less than 50% of the exterior front-fagade of all dweflings must be
constructed of materials utilizing non-lap siding.

. Driveways for dwellings shall be concrete.

. Single-family dwellings must have a minimum of 1,400 square
feet of heated living area, excluding any square footage of garages, porches, storage areas, or other
non-heated and unfinished areas to the dwelling.

. Single-family dwellings shall have roofs of no less than a 6-foot pitch and 12-
foot rise and be covered in architectural shingles.

. Each dwelling shall have an attached and fully enclosed one or two car garage.

. One accessory building shall be allowed for each lot on the Property and shall be
located within 35 feet of such lot's rear property line but no closer than 10 feet to the side property lines
of the lot. Under no circumstances shall any accessory building be used for business or commercial
uses or be used in such a way which would create or constitute an annoyance or nuisance for
surrounding property owners.

. Basketball goals if otherwise allowed shall be placed in any event at the
rear of the structure (or in the backyard) but not within a street or right-of-way.
Fences as allowed shall not be constructed (or of a style resembling} chain-fink.

. Motorcycles, mini-bikes,
mopeds, all-terrain vehicles, go-carts, and similar modes of transportation shall not be operated on any
developed or undeveloped lot or any street within the Property unless the same are licensed and are
used solely for the purpose of providing the operators thereof with a means of transportation to and from
the operator's residence.

. No sign of any type shall be displayed or placed on any building lot except ‘for rent" or “for
sale” signs, and shall nonetheless not exceed three (3) square feet in size to the face of the sign or be
placed at a height exceeding three (3) feet above the surface of the ground. Nothing contained herein
shall prevent any builder, contractor, lender, or real estate brokerage firm from placing a sign on a lot
while a dwelling is being constructed thereon, provided that such signage shall be removed from the lot
prior o the time the dwelling is occupied.

. Exofic pets and other animals, birds, or repfiles, including but not limited to livestock,
poultry, pot-bellied pigs, and swine, are not permitted and shall not be raised or kept on any lot. This
restriction shall not apply to dogs, cats, or other common household pets, provided that such pet is not
bred, kept, or maintained for commercial purposes, and provided that their existence is in no way
noxious, dangerous, unpleasant, or of a nature that might diminish the enjoyment and use of other
residents and owners in proximity to the lot on which the pet is located.

Dogs must be kept on a leash while being walked or otherwise fenced within the owner's lot.



Type: CONSOLIDATED REAL PROPERTY
Recorded: 4/1/2025 12:46:11 PM

Fee Amt: $26.00 Page 1 of3

Revenue Tax: $0.00

Gaston County, NC Register Of Deeds
Jonathan L. Fletcher, Registrar

BK 5547 PG 1217 - 1219

NORTH CAROLINA NON-WARRANTY DEED

Asto ly Pa 1 IN: 3517-61-9 MP: 11013 0

Asto c ax 5PIN; 3517-71 BMP: 11 013
ax =
NCG 317.2: The below lis—[ X1 resid rantor
by & : R. Steven Smit ey PO Box ,NC

Index Description: 2.450 acres +/- metes & bounds

This Deed 31t of and
GRANTOR GRANTEE
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr
& spouse, & spouse,
Suzanne P. Kiser Suzanne P. Kiser
1411 Puetts Chapel Road 1411 Puetts Chapel Road
Bessemer City, NC 28016-9582 Bessemer City, NC 28016-9582
The and Grantee as used herein parties,

successors, and assigns, and shall-include singutar, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as
required by context.

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the
| of

s
follows:

See attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by reference.

Registry.

submitted electronically by "R Steven Smith Attor
in compliance with North Carolina statutes govern recor e documents
and the terms of the submitter agreement with the ton C y Register of Deeds



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and
appurtenances thereto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.

Grantor, makes no warranty, expressed or implied, as to title to the property hereinabove
described.

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set his hand and seal, the day and year first above
written.

< EAL) (SEAL)
Luther Kiser, Jr

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF GASTON

1, a Notary Public of the County of { z{&; 72 4 and State aforesaid, certify that

Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. & spouse, Suzanne P. Kiser
personally came before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing
instrument. Witness my hand stamp or seal, this March 31, 2025.

02024



Exhibit A
Legal Description

Located in Crowders Mountain Township, with a portion said property being in the Town

ne
r,J
14
distances:
r Nort h St
98.08 tot oint and place of BEGINNING,
10 a
re 1
sh a

BL Companies.



ED REAL PROPERTY
1:03:17 AM
Fee Amt: $26.00 Page 10f4
Revenue Tax: $0.00
Gaston County, NC Register Of Deeds
Jonathan L. Fletcher, Registrar

BK 5547 PG 1105 - 1108

NORTH CAROLINA DEED

Tax Parcel: 151640 PIN: 3517-60-5819 BMP: 11 013 001 05 000

1 rantor
X ]
Index Description: Metes & Bounds
Deed made of March 2025
GRANTOR GRANTEE
Tommy Albert Millwood Development Solutions Group, LLC
& spouse, a North Carolina limited liability company,
Ann S. Millwood having Secretary of State ID# 1258264
114 Mountain Laurel Lane 6401 Carmel Road, Ste. 101
Dallas, NC 28034-7747 Charlotte, NC 28226-8364
The Grantee as used shall include their heirs,

successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as
required by context.

more particularly described as follows:

See attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by reference.

to

ge 40
(Tract No. 2) and Book 510 page 202 were reviewed.

submitted ele cally “R steven Smith orney"”
in compliance North olina statutes g rning recordable documents
and the terms e subm er agreement wit he Gaston county Register of Deeds



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and
appurtenances thereto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.

Grantor, makes no warranty, expressed or implied, as to title to the property hereinabove
described.

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set his hand and seal, the day and year first above
written.

(SEAL) (SEAL)
Albert
A /7 /) S. ’
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF GASTON
I, a Notary Public of the County of/;ﬁ?’&”/ and State aforesaid, certify that
Tommy Albert Millwood & Ann
personally came before me thi knowledged the execution of the foregoing
instrument. Witness my hand stamp or seal, this March 31, 2025.
TAR,
' +° Notary Public for
! ry Y/

Vs veL© My Commission



Exhibit A
Legal Description

Loc in ers Mountain ship,inG n nty and being a p ract
No. un ed plat of W. er Estate b more particularly as

courses and distances:

co
1) as ssing ane g rebar y margin of the
rig od e at 32.01 a | dista feet to an

142

eleven courses and distances:

to



nies.
- 151640 PIN: 3517-60-56819 BMP: 11 013 001 05 000



Type: CONSOLIDATED REAL PROPERTY
Recorded: 4/1/2025 11:02:32 AM

Fee Amt: $546.00 Page 10f3

Revenue Tax: $520.00

Gaston County, NC Register Of Deeds
Jonathan L. Fletcher, Registrar

BK 5547 PG 1102 - 1104

NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

Tax Parcel: 151640 PIN: 3517-60-5819 BMP: 11 013 001 05 000

] resid rantor
X ,NC
index Description. Metes & Bounds
This this 31%t between:
GRANTOR GRANTEE
Tommy Albert Mitllwood Development Solutions Group, LLC
& spouse, a North Carolina limited liability company,
Ann S. Millwood having Secretary of State ID# 1258264
114 Mountain Laurel Lane 6401 Carmel Road, Ste. 101
Dallas, NC 28034-7747 Charlotte, NC 28226-8364
Grantor as shall parties,

successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as
required by context.

more particularly described as foilows:

See attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by reference.

to

ge 40

submitted electroni 1y R _Steven smith or
in compliance with th 7lina statutes rn recordabie documents
and the terms of th ubm r agreement wi he ton County Register of Deeds









